
 
EXECUTIVE SERVICES  

TONBRIDGE & MALLING 

BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

Chief Executive 
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA 
 

Gibson Building 
Gibson Drive 
Kings Hill, West Malling 
Kent ME19 4LZ 
West Malling (01732) 844522 

 

 
NB - This agenda contains proposals, 
recommendations and options. These do 
not represent Council policy or decisions 
until they have received proper 
consideration through the full decision 
making process. 

Contact: Committee Services 
committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk 

 
21 November 2014 

  

 
To: MEMBERS OF THE JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 (Copies to all Members of the Council) 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Joint Transportation Board to be held in 
the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill, West Malling on Monday, 1st December, 
2014 commencing at 7.30 pm 
 

Yours faithfully 
 
JULIE BEILBY 
 
Chief Executive 

  

 
 

A G E N D A 

 
 
 PART 1 - PUBLIC 

 
1. Apologies for absence  
 

5 - 6 

2. Declarations of interest  
 
 
 
 
 

7 - 8 

Public Document Pack



3. Minutes  
 

9 - 12 

 To confirm as a correct record the Notes of the meeting of the Joint Transportation 
Board held on 22 September 2014  
 

 Matters for Decision 
 

4. Parking Action Plan  
 

13 - 18 

 Matters submitted for Information 
 

5. Local Growth Fund Projects  
 

19 - 20 

6. Developer Funded Schemes, Section 106 and Local Transport 
Plan Schemes  

 

21 - 30 

7. Combined Members Highway Fund and Members Grant Report 
for Tonbridge and Malling  

 

31 - 34 

8. Highway Works Programme 2014/15  
 

35 - 50 

9. A20 London Road, Wrotham Hill, Wrotham  
 

51 - 52 

10. Urgent Items  
 

53 - 54 

 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.  
 

 Matters for consideration in Private 
 

11. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

55 - 56 

 The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder 
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would 
disclose exempt information.  
 

 PART 2 - PRIVATE 
 

12. Urgent Items  
 

57 - 58 

 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.  
 



 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Mr C Smith (Chairman) 

Cllr Mrs S Murray (Vice-Chairman) 
 
 Cllr D A S Davis 

Cllr N J Heslop 
Cllr Mrs F A Kemp 
Cllr R D Lancaster 
Cllr Mrs A S Oakley 
Cllr A K Sullivan 
 

Mr M Balfour 
Mrs V Dagger 
Mrs T Dean 
Mrs S Hohler 
Mr P Homewood 
Mr R Long 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Apologies for absence 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Declarations of interest 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 
 

Monday, 22nd September, 2014 
 

Present: Mr C Smith (Chairman), Cllr Mrs S Murray (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr D A S Davis, Cllr Mrs F A Kemp, Cllr R D Lancaster, 
Cllr Mrs A S Oakley, Cllr A K Sullivan, Mr M Balfour, Mrs V Dagger, 
Mrs S Hohler and Mr R Long. 
 

 Borough Councillors Mrs J A Anderson, J A L Balcombe, 
O C Baldock, P F Bolt, Ms V M C Branson, M A Coffin, D J Cure, 
B J Luker, Miss A Moloney, M R Rhodes and M Taylor were also 
present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21. 
 

 Mr H Rayner was present on behalf of the Kent Association of Local 
Councils and Mr M Dobson attended on behalf of Hildenborough 
Parish Council.  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Borough Councillor 
N J Heslop and County Councillor Mrs T Dean. 
 
PART 1 - PUBLIC 
 

JTB 14/21 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made in accordance with the 
Code of Conduct. 
 

JTB 14/22 
  

MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED:  That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint 
Transportation Board held on 9 June 2014 be approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

JTB 14/23 
  

PARKING ACTION PLAN  
 
Decision Notice D140104MEM 
 
The report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental 
Health gave an update on the phased approach to on-street parking 
management with a focus on the work in progress. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the following be commended to the Borough Council 
Cabinet   
 
The way forward as set out in the report, including a review of the overall 
approach to parking be agreed. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 22 September 2014 
 
 

 
 

JTB 14/24 
  

TONBRIDGE TOWN CENTRE TRANSPORT STRATEGY - UPDATE  
 
Decision Notice D140105MEM 
 
The joint report of the Director of Highways and Transportation and the 
Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health gave an update 
on progress with the revised Transport Strategy for Tonbridge town 
centre. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the following be commended to the Borough Council 
Cabinet  
 
The work to date and the next steps as set out in the report be noted.  
 
MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION 
 

JTB 14/25 
  

DEVELOPER FUNDED SCHEMES SECTION 106 AND 
LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN SCHEMES  
 
The report of the Head of Transportation, Kent Highways, provided an 
update on the current and future works relating to Section 106 and Local 
Transport Plan Funded schemes promoted by the County Council within 
the Borough.   
 

JTB 14/26 
  

COMBINED MEMBER HIGHWAY FUND REPORT FOR 
TONBRIDGE AND MALLING DISTRICT  
 
The report of the Head of Transportation, Kent Highways, provided 
details of current County Member Highway Fund Schemes within the 
Borough. 
 

JTB 14/27 
  

HIGHWAY WORKS PROGRAMME 2014/15  
 
The report of KCC Highways and Transportation provided an update on 
schemes approved for construction by the County Council in 2014/15.  
 

JTB 14/28 
  

LOCAL WINTER SERVICE PLAN  
 
The report of the Head of Highway Operations outlined the 
arrangements made between Kent County Council and Tonbridge and 
Malling Borough Council to provide a local winter service in the event of 
an operational snow alert in the Borough.  
 

JTB 14/29 
  

URGENT ITEMS  
 
The Chairman advised that he had accepted the following item as urgent 
due to special circumstances arising from a fatal road traffic incident 
within the Borough. 
 
 

Page 10



JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 22 September 2014 
 
 

 
 

JTB 14/30 
  

FATAL ROAD TRAFFIC INCIDENTS, GRAVESEND ROAD, 
WROTHAM  
 
The representative of the Kent Association of Local Councils, 
Mr H Rayner, thanked the Board for allowing him to raise the issue of 
fatal incidents on the A20 at the M20 bridge adjacent to Gravesend 
Road, Wrotham involving motor cyclists.  He expressed concern about 
the visibility of signage and asked if the County Council could investigate 
whether these could be improved.  It was suggested that advice be 
sought from Kent Police, particularly the motorcycle section, through the 
regular meetings with the County Council’s Road Safety team and that 
this matter be reported to the next meeting of the Joint Transportation 
Board.   
 
MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE 
 

JTB 14/31 
  

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
There were no items considered in private. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.10 pm 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



   

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

01 December 2014 

Report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health 

Part 1- Public 

Matters For Decision 

 

1 PARKING ACTION PLAN 

Summary 

This report updates Members on the phased approach to on-street parking 

management with a focus on the work in progress. 

 

1.1 Introduction 

1.1.1 The Borough Council’s approach to on-street parking management has been 

divided into phases so economies of scale can be applied and work is delivered in 

a timely manner.  The current priorities are set out below together with future 

proposals. 

1.2 West Malling Parking Review 

1.2.1 As part of the work of the West Malling Parking Review Steering Group we are 

currently carrying out informal consultation on alterations to the existing parking 

area codes and other parking changes in a number of areas of West Malling.  We 

have sent consultation leaflets to all properties in West Malling asking residents 

for their views.  We have also sent specific letters to the residents where actual 

changes to on-street parking layouts are proposed.  The areas covered by these 

changes are: 

Swan Street 

High Street 

Town Hill 

Offham Road 

Norman Road 

Fatherwell Avenue 

A20 London Road 

1.2.2 The consultation runs until 28th December. 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 2  

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

1.3 East Malling Parking Review 

1.3.1 We carried out a review of parking arrangements in East Malling a few years ago 

and have had an outstanding commitment to carry out minor alterations and 

adjustments to the restrictions.  

1.3.2 Earlier this year we carried out informal consultation on parking changes in a 

number of areas and reported the responses back to the Board.  We are now 

carrying out formal consultation on those parking changes. 

1.3.3 The areas where we are currently consulting on changes are: 

Stickens Lane 

Middle Mill Road 

Chapel Street 

Clare Lane 

Cottenham Close 

Mill Street 

Upper Mill 

Wateringbury Road 

The Grange 

The Rocks Road 

1.3.4 The consultation consists of letters to residents, notices on-street and in the local 

press, documents on deposit at the Council Offices, and letters to the normal 

statutory consultees.  The consultation closes on 19th December 2014. 

1.4 Borough Green Parking Review 

1.4.1 Next in our parking programme of work is a review of the Local Parking Plan for 

Borough Green, including a review of on-street disabled parking in the town 

centre.  We have recently started looking at local concerns across the town with 

local members and the Parish Council and will bring back to the Board any 

proposals for changes. 

1.5 Hadlow – Local Parking Plan 

1.5.1 Following on from the above reviews we will be in contact with Hadlow Parish 

Council and the local Borough Councillors to consider the development of a Local 

Parking Plan for the community and we will address requests by traders for some 

restricted local short stay parking to encourage turnover.  

1.5.2 Other Minor Changes  

1.5.3 Further to an unresolved request to make some minor adjustments to the 

restrictions in Royal Avenue/Goldsmid Road area of Tonbridge we are currently 

consulting with local residents on some adjustments to the current restrictions. 

Page 14



 3  

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

Any changes which we feel are appropriate will be brought to the Board for 

approval.  

1.6 Local Parking Plan - Phase 8 

1.6.1 We are now compiling a list of locations which may form Phase 8 of the Local 

Parking Plan. 

1.6.2 The locations currently on the list for consideration or investigation are listed 

below and we will start to look at these as soon as resources permit.  

No. Town Location 

1 Addington Millhouse Lane 

2 Aylesford The Avenue and Hall Road 

3 Aylesford The Hawthorns and The Avenue 

4 Blue Bell Hill Old Chatham Road (access to industrial estate) 

5 East Malling Twisden Road (disabled bay) 

6 East Peckham Chidley Cross Road and Church Lane 

7 Hadlow Twyford Road 

8 Hildenborough Noble Tree Road 

9 Hildenborough Philpots Lane 

10 Hildenborough Lower Street 

11 Hildenborough Church Lane/Riding Lane junction 

12 Hildenborough Mount Pleasant/Riding Lane junction 

13 Hildenborough Woodview Crescent/Brookmead 

14 Hildenborough Church Road 

15 Hildenborough Lower Street and Rings Hill 

16 Kings Hill Discovery Drive (School Keep Clear) 

17 Kings Hill Francis Lane 

18 Kings Hill Hazen Road 

19 Larkfield Willow Road and Lunsford Lane 

20 Larkfield Kingfisher Road, Heron Road and Woodpecker Road 

21 Larkfield Reeves Court and Garner Drive 

22 Larkfield Lunsford Lane (south of Leybourne Way) 

23 Leybourne Baywell 

24 Mereworth Herne Pound 

25 Platt Grange Road 

26 Snodland 
Birling Road (between Roberts Road and Recreation 
Avenue) 

27 Tonbridge Mill Crescent (new property near No.1) 

28 Tonbridge The Drive (an additional afternoon hour restriction) 

29 Tonbridge Cromer Street (alter parking bays) 

30 Tonbridge Vale Rise 

31 Tonbridge Hunt Road (disabled bay) 

32 Tonbridge Welland Road 

33 Tonbridge Deakin Leas 

Page 15



 4  

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

34 Tonbridge Haydens Mews 

35 Tonbridge Medina Road (disabled bay) 

36 Tonbridge Chiltern Way 

37 Tonbridge Barden Road (changes due to redevelopment) 

38 Tonbridge Priory Road (disabled bay) 

39 Tonbridge Medway Wharf Road 

40 Tonbridge Angel Lane (disabled and loading controls) 

41 Tonbridge The Botany (disabled and loading controls) 

42 Tonbridge Salisbury Close and Salisbury Road 

43 Tonbridge Martin Hardie Way 

44 Tonbridge Lower Hayesden Country Park entrance 

45 Tonbridge Howard Drive and Norwich Avenue 

46 Tonbridge Scott Road (permit parking) 

47 Wrotham Kemsing Road and Randall Hill Road 

48 Wrotham Heath A25/A20 junction 

 

1.7 Legal Implications 

1.7.1 The on-street parking service is undertaken by the Borough Council on behalf of 

the County Council under the terms of the formal legal agreement. 

1.8 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.8.1 Funding to implement the parking action plan is provided within existing approved 

Borough Council Budgets 

1.9 Risk Assessment 

1.9.1 The assessment and consultation process applied to parking management should 

provide the assurance that the Borough Council has the will and ability to adapt 

the Parking Plans, in the light of comment and circumstances, to ensure that it 

achieves a best balance of local parking needs.  A regular review of the schemes 

is crucial to ensure that we can correctly and effectively manage on-street parking 

in these areas as the proposals are either introduced for safety reasons or to 

provide a more appropriate balance of parking needs. 

1.9.2 A major risk is that scheme proposals encounter significant lack of local support. 

This risk is mitigated by the considerable effort devoted to ensuring there is 

widespread consultation on proposals through two stages of informal consultation 

before any formal stage of consultation is reached.  There is also care given to 

ensuring that schemes are adjusted and adapted in the light of comments and 

observations received from the local community, without compromising safety or 

the Council’s commitment to deal appropriately with identified safety concerns. 

 

 

Page 16



 5  

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

1.10 Equality Impact Assessment 

1.10.1 The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance 

to the substance of the Equality Act.  There is no perceived impact on end users. 

1.11 Policy Considerations 

1.11.1 Community 

1.12 Recommendations 

1.12.1 That the way forward as set out the report, including a review of our overall 

approach to parking BE AGREED.  

The Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health confirms that the 

proposals contained in the recommendation(s), if approved, will fall within the Council's 

Budget and Policy Framework. 

 

Background papers: contact: Mike O’Brien 

Nil  

 

Steve Humphrey    

Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



   

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

01 December 2014 

Report of the Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health 

Part 1- Public 

Matters For Information 

 

1 LOCAL GROWTH FUND PROJECTS 

Summary 

This report provides an update on the awards via the South East Local 

Enterprise Partnership (SELEP) Strategic Economic Plan (SEP). 

1.1 Funding for Transport Schemes 

1.1.1 In July 2014 awards made to each of the 39 Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) 

in England were announced.  The Tonbridge town centre regeneration scheme 

was awarded a share of the Government’s Single Local Growth Fund (SLGF) 

allocation of £2.37 million.  It should be noted that receipt of the SLGF award of 

£2.37 million is subject to the scheme business case being accepted by the LEP. 

KCC will be leading the implementation of this project as Highway Authority but 

the Borough Council will of course maintain a strong input, continuing the 

partnership approach we have adopted for the scheme.  At the time of writing this 

report it is understood that the project may have to be completed by March 2016 

but as soon as a programme is formed further advice will be provided to 

Members.  This is likely to include a further briefing session for local Members in 

advance of any agreed public engagement. 

1.1.2 In addition to this there are funding streams for West Kent available through the 

Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF).  This funding totalling £4.5m (but 

subject to additional match funding) is available for the West Kent Authorities of 

Tonbridge & Malling, Sevenoaks and Tunbridge Wells together with Maidstone 

Borough Council (for the purpose of this award) between 2015 and 2021. 

Meetings are being held at a senior level between each authority and KCC to 

coordinate how this money should be allocated to ensure we deliver some high-

impact schemes with clear objectives.  

1.1.3 TMBC are likely to be looking for funding to support improvements to the bus, car 

and pedestrian interface at some of our key railway stations.  Southeastern is 

currently developing plans for some improvements to the facilities for buses, 

pedestrians and cyclists serving Snodland station together with additional 

parking.  Although Southeastern have access to some funding streams a 

contribution from the LSTF would ensure we achieve prompt delivery of a quality 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 2  

JTB - Part 1 Public  01 December 2014  

scheme here which would support the “High Speed” service stopping at Snodland 

in the New Year.  We are also in contact with the bus operators to try and ensure 

that appropriate bus links are provided to the station to meet the High Speed 

trains which should, hopefully, minimise any on-street parking problems which 

might materialise should this service prove popular with commuters travelling from 

further afield.  We are also looking to bring forward some proposals for 

improvements at Tonbridge station and possibly another station location 

depending on the final availability of funding and the deliverability of projects. 

1.2 Junction 4 of the M20 

1.2.1 This is also the subject of an award from the Single Local Growth Fund.  £2.19m 

has been allocated pending approval of the business case.  With ‘match’ 

contribution of £2.25m the total amount expected for the scheme is £4.5m.  The 

scheme will be progressed by the KCC Major Projects team with a start date 

programmed for March 2016. 

1.3 Legal Implications 

1.3.1 None 

1.4 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.4.1 None directly for the Borough Council 

1.5 Risk Assessment 

1.5.1 Not required. 

1.6 Policy Considerations 

1.6.1 Community 

 

Background papers: contact: Mike O’Brien 

Nil  

 

Steve Humphrey 

Director of Planning, Housing and Environmental Health 

Page 20



 
 
 
To:   Tonbridge & Malling Joint Transportation Board  

By: Tim Read, Head of Transportation 

Date: Monday 1st December 2014  

Subject:  Developer Funded Schemes Section 106 and Local 
Transport Plan (LTP) Schemes 

Classification: Information only  

 

Summary: This report provides an update on the current and future works 
relating to section 106 and Local Transport Plan Funded schemes promoted 
by KCC. 
 

 
1.1 Introduction 
 
1.1.1 Annex 1 attached to this report provides a summary of the current 

position on a number of Developer Funded Schemes, Section 106 and 
Local Transport Plan (LTP) Schemes initiatives in the Borough. 

 
2. Legal Implications 
 
1.2.1 None 
 
3. Financial and Value for Money Considerations 
 
1.3.1 As covered with Annex 1 of the report – Developer Funded Schemes 
Section 106 and Local Transport Plan (LTP) Schemes 
 
1.4 Risk Assessment  
 
1.4.1 None. 

 

Contact Officer: Chad Nwanosike / Michael Heath 
 
Tel: 03000 81 41 41  
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 – Developer Funded Schemes Section 106 and Local Transport Plan (LTP) Schemes 

 

Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 81 

81 

Halling 
Cement 
Works 

Leybourne 
Contribution to widening of M20 
Junction 4 Eastern Overbridge 

 
Planning application for 
smaller-scale mixed-use 
development granted by 
Medway Council. Revised 
S.106 contribution to M20 
Junction 4 Eastern 
Overbridge agreed with KCC 
and the Highways Agency.  
First phase of contribution 
has been requested. 
 

 
Decision on Single Growth 
Fund bid was announced 
in July 2014 with an award 
of £2.19 million pending 
approval of the business 
case. With ‘match’ 
contribution of £2.25 
million the total amount for 
the scheme is £4.5 million. 
Scheme being progressed 
by KCC Major Projects 
team. 

Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Holborough 
Valley 

Snodland 
Pedestrian and cycling 
improvements in Snodland 

Funding secured from 
developer. Contributions to 
various footway and 
pedestrian crossing 
improvements in Snodland. 

Detailed design and 
programming of schemes. 

Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Holborough 
Valley 

Various 

 
Contribution to A20 Quality Bus 
Corridor, comprising traffic signal 
priority, upgraded stops and 
shelters and junction capacity 
improvements 
 

Traffic signal upgrades 
programmed, upgraded stops 
and real-time bus information 
programmed. Funding 
secured from developer 

Ongoing delivery of traffic 
signal upgrades, bus stop 
improvements and real-
time bus information. 
Programming of Gighill 
Road traffic calming 
modifications. 

£20,000 £20,000 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

P
age 23



 
 

Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 81 

81 

Holborough 
Valley 

Various 

 
Study into feasibility of 
enhancing Route 151 bus 
service 
 

S.106 trigger point not yet 
reached 

N/A Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Kings Hill Various 

Contribution to A20 Quality Bus 
Corridor, comprising traffic signal 
priority, upgraded stops and 
shelters and junction capacity 
improvements 

Traffic signal upgrades 
programmed, upgraded stops 
and real-time bus information 
programmed. S.106 trigger 
point for Kings Hill 
contribution not yet reached.  

 
Ongoing delivery of traffic 
signal upgrades, bus stop 
improvements and real-
time bus information, 
funded by Holborough 
Valley and Leybourne 
Chase contributions. 
Ongoing procurement and 
programming of upgraded 
stops and shelters. 
  

Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

 
Kings Hill 
 

Kings Hill Bus Lane on Tower View 

 
S.106 trigger point not yet 
reached. Kings Hill Phase 3 
proposals may warrant 
revised trigger point. 
 

 Kings Hill Phase 3 
application granted by 
TMBC. Potential for 
revised S.106 and trigger 
point for bus lane scheme 

Nil Nil 

 

 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

 

 

A
n

n
e

x
 1

 

P
age 24



Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 

81 81 

Kings Hill Mereworth 

 
Improved sight lines at A228 / 
Kent Street junction and 
installation of foot/cycleway to 
Mosquito Road. Potential 
installation of pelican crossing on 
A228 and extension of 30mph 
speed limit. 
 

 
Outline design completed and 
meeting held with 
neighbouring landowner to 
discuss required land take. 
Funding secured from 
developer 

 
Negotiations with 
neighbouring landowner 
and surveys taking place 
in order to progress the 
design and provide a cost 
estimate. Once complete 
further consultation can 
take place. 

£50,000 £50,000 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Leybourne 
Chase 

Various 

Contribution to A20 Quality Bus 
Corridor, comprising traffic signal 
priority, upgraded stops and 
shelters and junction capacity 
improvements 

Traffic signal upgrades 
programmed, upgraded stops 
and real-time bus information 
programmed. Funding 
secured from developer.  

 
Ongoing delivery of traffic 
signal upgrades, bus stop 
improvements and real-
time bus information. 
 

£20,000 £20,000 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Leybourne 
Chase 

Leybourne Traffic calming on Birling Road 

 
Traffic and speed surveys 
completed. Demonstrate that 
traffic calming not currently 
required. Contribution to be 
held in abeyance until 
development built out further, 
including completion of 
upgraded Birling Road 
access. 
 

N/A Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

P
age 25



Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 

81 81 

Leybourne 
Chase 

West Malling 
Improved interchange at West 
Malling Station 

 
Construction work 
substantially complete. 
 

Work being progressed by 
South eastern Railway 
and is substantially 
complete. 

£550,000 £550,000 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Leybourne 
Park  

Leybourne 

 
Contribution to widening of M20 
Junction 4 Eastern Overbridge 
 

 
Funding secured from 
developer. 
 

 
Single Local Growth Fund 
bid successful pending 
approval of business case. 
Successful outcome would 
enable construction during 
2015/16. 

Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Peter’s 
Village 

Leybourne 

 
Contribution to widening of M20 
Junction 4 Eastern Overbridge 
 

S.106 trigger point not yet 
reached. 

Single Local Growth Fund 
bid successful pending 
approval of business case. 
Successful outcome would 
enable construction during 
2015/16. 

Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Peter’s 
Village 

Various 

 
Enhancement of Route 155 bus 
service 
 

S.106 trigger point not yet 
reached. 

N/A Nil Nil  

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Peter’s 
Village 

Various New ‘west bank’ bus service 

 
S.106 trigger point not yet 
reached. 
 

N/A Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

 

 

P
age 26



 
 
 
 
 
  

Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 

81 81 

Ryarsh 
Brickworks 

Various 
Traffic calming in Ryarsh and 
surrounding villages 

 
Development currently 
stalled. S.106 trigger point not 
yet reached. 
 

N/A Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Ryarsh 
Brickworks 

Various 

 
Enhancement of Ryarsh bus 
services, one month bus pass for 
all new occupiers of the 
development and all residents of 
Ryarsh Parish 
 

Development currently 
stalled. S.106 trigger point not 
yet reached. 

N/A Nil Nil 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

Redrow / 
Town and 
Country 
Housing 
Group 

Tonbridge 
 
Sovereign Way pedestrian 
improvements 

 
Outline design and public 
consultation exercise 
completed. Funding secured 
from developer. 

 
Detailed design complete, 
awaiting start date. 

 
£50,000 

 
£50,000 

 

 

Louise 

Rowlands 

P
age 27



B245 
London 
Road/Dry 
Hill Park 
Road 

Tonbridge Highway Safety Improvements 

Scheme substantially 
complete, waiting on road 
markings as of 7th November, 
these have been delayed by 
poor weather 

 
 
Scheme completed 

£150K £19K 
Michael 

Heath 

A20/Seven 
Mile Lane 

Wrotham 
Heath 

Junction Improvements - No 2 
crash site in the County and a 
spate of recent incidents have 
resulted in numerous calls for 
action from the local community 
& Councillors  

Scheme largely complete on 
site, delays to street lighting 
element caused by difficulties 
with UKPN connection and a 
power cable fault damaged 
during the works. Site partially 
in light as of 7th November 
and we hope to have the 
remaining new columns 
working within the next few 
weeks. 

 
 
 
Final remedial works and 
scheme completion 

£220K £440K 
Michael 

Heath 

Snodland Snodland 
LTP Scheme – Footway 
improvement High Street 
junction with May Street 

Detailed design  Scheme delivery  £3k 
Michael 

Heath 

  

Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 –
20

14
-1

5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 81 

81 

P
age 28



Developer Parish  Description of Works Current Progress 
Anticipated Actions for 

next 3 months 
(Prior to next JTB) O

ri
g

in
al

 

A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 

20
14

-1
5 

F
o

re
ca

st
 

O
u

t-
tu

rn
 

20
14

-1
5 

Kent County 
Council H&T 

Contact 
03000 41 81 

81 

Ditton  Ditton 
LTP Scheme – Legal work to 
enable scheme to develop  
Station Road Ditton 

Legal work for deed of 
Dedication 

Legal Work progression  £3k 
Michael 

Heath 

Borough 
Green 

Borough 
Green 

LTP Scheme – Forward design 
and Options Report 

 Brief with consultants to 
develop Traffic Management 
Options Report for Borough 
Green. Draft report expected 
14th November 

Delivery of Options Report  £6k 
Michael 

Heath 

Hadlow Hadlow 
CRM scheme – A26 junction with 
Carpenters Lane 

Concept design - restricted 
visibility caused by tree. 
Alternative option proposed 
which will realign centre line 
and reposition junction 
markings at the loss of some 
parking. The tree will remain 
but will need to be pollarded 

Scheme development  £15k 
Michael 

Heath 

Tonbridge Tonbridge 
CRM Scheme – A26 Hadlow 
Road junction with Higham Lane 

Works ordered– signs and 
lines, High Friction Surfacing 

Scheme delivery  £16k 
Michael 

Heath 

Hadlow Hadlow 
CRM Scheme – A26 Maidstone 
Road junction with Common 
Road 

Works ordered– Signs and 
lines, High Friction Surfacing 

 Scheme delivery  £22k 
Michael 

Heath 

 
Contact:  Louise Rowlands / Michael Heath 03000 41 81 81 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



To:   Tonbridge and Malling Joint Transportation Board  

By: Tim Read, Head of Transportation 

Date: Monday 1st December 

Subject:  Members Highway Fund and Combined Members Grant  

Classification: Information only  

 

Summary: Recommendations: That Members note the progress of programmed highway 
improvements. 
 

 

Appendices 

A.   Member Highway Funded Schemes and Combined Members Grant 

 

Risk Assessment Statement 

1. None 

 
Contact officer: Donna Rixson  

Tel: 03000 41 81 81  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



                        Appendix A: 
 
Combined Member Fund programme update for the Tonbridge and Malling District. 
 
The following schemes are those which have been approved for funding by both the relevant 
Member and by John Burr, Director of Highways and is up to date as of 12 November 2014. 
 
The details below are for Highway Schemes only and do not detail contributions Members have 
made to other groups such as Parish or District Councils. 
 
More detail on their schemes can be accessed by each Member via the online database or by 
contacting their Highway Project Engineer.  
 
2013/14 Member Highway Fund Schemes 

 
Trudy Dean 
 

Scheme Status 
To design and implement various highway 
improvements in East Malling , this is being carried out 
with consultation with the East Malling Conservation 
Group 

TRO complete.  Awaiting 
installation 

 
Sarah Hohler 

 

Scheme Status 
Installation of signage to direct HGVs to the Tesco 
Distribution Centre – Ham Hill 

Complete 

Installation of a VAS – Teston Road, Offham Awaiting installation (to be carried 
out by w/e 21 November 2014) 

Installation of ‘Unsuitable for HVGs’ signage in Pilgrims 
Way, Trottiscliffe from Taylors Lane to Pinefied Grove. 

Complete 

Installation of traffic management measures – 
Trottiscliffe Road, Addington 

Complete 

A20 London Road, Wrotham, Tower Industrial Estate, 
verge bollards 

Complete. 

 
Matthew Balfour 

 

Scheme Status 
Creating a new footway alongside Discovery School in 
Discovery Drive 
 

Complete 

Hale Street, East Peckham Traffic Calming 
Improvements 

Handed over for delivery 

 
Peter Homewood 

 

Scheme Status 
Bull Lane Eccles Damaged Verge Kerb Protection Complete 

Oldfield Drive, Wouldham Low Level Shrub Planting Complete 

Pilgrims’ Way, Aylesford Speed Limit Reduction Handed over for delivery 

Page 32



 
Valerie Dagger 
 

 

Scheme Status 
Introducing a proposed 30 mph speed limit in Long Mill 
Lane, Dunks Green 

Handed over for delivery. 

Leigh Road, Hildenborough Zebra Crossing An alternative design is now 
underway. 

 
Richard Long 

 

Scheme Status 
A contribution using the remainder of Mr Long’s MHF 
towards the Dry Hill Park/London Road scheme 
towards a puffin crossing facility. 

Contribution passed to Traffic 
Schemes.  The scheme is now on 

site 
 
 

Christopher Smith 
 

Scheme Status 
Illuminating the pedestrian crossing – The Drive, 
Pembury Road/Lavender Hill 

Works Complete 

St Saviour’s Church, Dry Hill Park Road Direction 
Signing 

Works Complete 

A contribution using the remainder of Mr Smith’s MHF 
towards the Dry Hill Park/London Road scheme 
towards a puffin crossing facility. 

Contribution passed to Traffic 
Schemes.  The scheme is now on 

site 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



To:               Tonbridge & Malling Joint Transportation Board  
 
By:               KCC Highways and Transportation 
 
Date:                Monday 1st December  
 
Subject:    Highway Works Programme 2014/15 
 
Classification: Information Only  
 
 
Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction in 2014/15 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been 
programmed for delivery in 2014/15 
 

 

Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes – see Appendix A 
 
   
Street Lighting – see Appendix B 
 
 
Bridge Works – see Appendix C  
 
 
 
Conclusion  
 

1. This report is for Members information. 
 
 
Contact Officers: 
 
The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 41 41 41 
  
Carol Valentine             Highway Manager (West) 
Mark Simmons   Dartford District Manager  
Sue Kinsella    Street Lighting Manager 
Neil Tree   Carriageway Surface Treatment 
Russell Boorman   Resurfacing Manager 
Mary Gillett   Major Projects Planning Manager  
Wendy Bousted   Footway Improvement Team Leader   
Katie Lewis    Drainage Manager 
Toby Butler    Intelligent Transport Systems Manager 
Tony Ambrose    Structures Manager  
 
 
 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Appendix A – Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes 
 
The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not 
possible to carry out these works on the planned dates, new dates will be 
arranged and the residents will be informed by a letter drop to their homes. 
 

 
Surface Dressing – Contact Officer Mrs Wendy Boustead 

 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

 
Malling Road 

 
East Malling & 

Larkfield 

 
Leybourne Way southbound 

from Ham Hill 

 
Completed 

 

 
Tonbridge Road 

 
Hildenborough 

 
From its junction with Farm 

Lane to BP garage 
 

 
Completed 

London Road Hildenborough 
From its junction with Mill 
Lane to its junction with  

Nizel's Lane 

 
Completed 

 
London Road 

 
Tonbridge 

 
From its junction with Dry Hill 
Park Road to its junction with  

Stacey Road 

 
Substantially 
Completed 

 
Brook Street  

 
Tonbridge 

 
From its junction with 

Masefield Way to its junction 
with Shakespeare Road 

 
Completed 

 
London Road 

 
Ryarsh 

 
From Callis Court Nurseries to 
its junction with Roughetts 

Road 

 
Deferred due to utility 
works.  This scheme 
will now be delivered 

in 2015/16 

 
Pilgrims Way 

 
Aylesford 

 
From its junction with Bull 
Lane to its junction with 

Rochester Road 

 
Completed 

 
Teston Road 

 
West Malling 

 
From Offham Village gateway 
to its junction with St Leonards 

Street 

 
Completed 

 
New Road 

 
East Malling & 

Larkfield 

 
From East Malling Gateway to 
its junction with Bradbourne 

Park Road 

 
Completed 

 
Rochester Road 

 
Burham 

 
From its junction with Bull 
Lane to its junction with 
Whitehouse Crescent 

 
Completed 

 
The Hurst 

 
Plaxtol 

 
From its junction with Swanton 
Road to its junction with Long 

Mill Lane 

Completed 

Page 36



 
Hale Street 

 
East Peckham 

 
From Red House to Harp PH 

 
Completed 

 
Malling Road 

 
Mereworth 

 
From its junction with Gibson 
Drive to layby north of The 

Street 

 
Completed 

 
Common Road 

 
Hadlow 

 
From its junction with 

Carpenters Lane to its junction 
with A26 Maidstone Road 

 
Completed 

 
Kemsing Road 

 
Wrotham 

 
From its junction with New 
House Farm to its junction 

with Fen Pond Road 

 
Completed 

 
Tonbridge Road 

 
Hildenborough 

 
BP garage to its junction with 

Dry Hill Park Road 

 
Completed 

 
Micro Asphalt Schemes – Contact Officer Mrs Wendy Boustead 

 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

 
High Cross Road 

 
Ightham 

 
From Stone Street Road to its 

junction with the A227 
Ightham Road 

 

 
Deferred due to utility 
works.  This scheme 
will now be delivered 

in 2015/16 

 
Pine Tree Lane 

 
Ightham 

 
From its junction with Stone 

Street Road to its junction with 
Coach Road 

 
Deferred due to utility 
works.  This scheme 
will now be delivered 

in 2015/16 
 

 
Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell 

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status 

 
A228 Ashton Way 

 
West Malling 
Kings Hill 

 
Approach to the Tower View 

roundabout 
Completed 

 
A26 Tonbridge Road 

 
Mereworth 

 
Between the A228 junctions 

 
Completed 

 
B245 Tonbridge Road 

 
Hildenborough 

 
Between Foxbush and Noble 

Tree Road 

 
Completed 

Page 37



 
A20 London Road 

 
Leybourne 

 
At the junction with Castle 

Way/A228 

 
Completed 

 
Tunbury Avenue 

 
Aylesford 

 
From its junction with Robin 

Hood Lane to No.53 

 
Completed 

 
Catlyn Close 

 
East Malling 

 
Whole Length 

 
Completed 

 
Old London Road 

 
Aylesford 

 
Police Traffic HQ access to 

traveller site 

 
Completed 

 
Battlefields 

 
Wrotham 

 
Between Kemsing Road and 

Pilgrims Way 

 
Completed 

 
A20 Wrotham Heath  

 
Wrotham 

 
Circulatory including A20 

London Road to its junction 
with Ford Lane. 

 
To be programmed 

Spring 2015 

 
 

A228 Snodland Bypass 

 
 

Snodland 

Southbound side of dual 
carriageway to Ham Hill 

roundabout 

 
To be programmed 

Spring 2015 

 
B2260 Railway 

Approach/Quarry Hill 
Road 

 
Tonbridge 

 
From its junction with Vale 
Road to its junction with 

Pembury Road 
 

 
To be programmed 

Spring 2015 

 
Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Mr Neil Tree 

Road Name Parish Extent and Description of 
Works 

Current Status 

London Road Wrotham/Platt 

From M26 J2a to the A25. 
Replacement of existing 

asphalt surface and kerbing 
where required.  

 
To be re-programmed 
consultation underway 

with the Highway 
Agency. 

 

High Street Tonbridge 

 
From its junction with Bordyke 
to outside number 135.  This 
scheme is currently in the 

design stages 

 
To be re-programmed.  

Delayed to avoid 
Christmas shopping 

period. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 38



Appendix B – Street Lighting 
 

Structural testing of KCC owned street lights has identified the following as requiring 
replacement this financial year. A status of complete identifies that the column replacement 
has been carried out. Programme dates are identified for those still requiring replacement.    
 
 
  

Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella 
 

Road Name Ward Column Ref Location Status 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK001 

J/W WATERLOO 
ROAD LHS 

Complete. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK002 

OPPS J/W 
PRIORY ROAD 

Complete. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK003 O/S 13 

Complete. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK004 

O/S 6/7 
QUARRY HILL 

PARADE 

Complete. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK005 

J/W PEMBURY 
ROAD 

ROUNDABOUT 

Complete. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JQAK006 

O/S 11 QUARRY 
HILL PARADE 

Complete. 

Railway 
Approach  

Tonbridge 

JRCT004 
OPPS STATION 

RHS 

Column cut down and 
removed, further trial holes 
being programmed, awaiting 
dates. 

Elm Lane Tonbridge JEAX001 
ON ELM 
COTTAGE 

Complete. 

Five Oak 
Green Road 

Tonbridge JFAW002 
O/S 91/93 

TUDELEY LANE 
Complete. 

Hallsfield road Walderslade JHAK502 
J/W 

WALDERSLADE 
WOODS 

Complete. 

London Road Nepicar JLCL006 
OPP OAKDENE 

CAFÉ 
Complete. 

Lunsford Lane Larkfield JLDD539 
J/W 

LEYBOURNE 
WAY 

Complete. 

Tudeley Lane Tonbridge JTDW001 ADJ 19/25 Complete. 

Tudeley Lane Tonbridge JTDW002 ADJ 35/41 Complete. 

Tudeley Lane Tonbridge JTDW004 ADJ 67/73 

 
 

Complete. 
 
 

Page 39



Hadlow Road 
East 

Higham JHAC 

Feeder Pillar for 
Traffic Island 

Junction Cuckoo 
Lane. 

Electrical Connection Dates 
Currently Being 
Programmed. 

Whistler Road Higham JWBD010 O/S 51 
Currently being re-

programmed. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge JQAK545 
Sign In Centre 
Reservation 

UKPN Require further 
investigations works to ID 

Cable. 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Tonbridge JQAK028 
S/O 3 Quarry 

Bank 

Currently being re-
programmed due to TM 

Requirements. 

Holborough 
Road 

Snodland JHCN008 Outside 82/84 
Currently being re-

programmed. 

Malling Road Snodland JMAQ036 O/S 66 SHOP 

Requires letter drop to 
residents for assistance with 
parking bay suspension. 
Awaiting programme date. 
Estimated Completion End 

of January 2015. 

Birch Crescent 
Aylesford 

JBBL008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Hermitage 
Lane 

Aylesford 
JHBK007 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

High Street 
Aylesford 

JHBU011 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Mills Road 
Aylesford 

JMCN020 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Station Road 
Aylesford 

JSDH003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Borough 
Green Road 

Borough Green 
JBCK018 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Quarry Hill 
Road 

Borough Green 
JQAC502, 504 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

St Michaels 
Close 

Boxley 
KSDZ012 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Impton Lane 
Boxley KIAC002, 005, 

019, 024, 030, 
037. 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Acorn Grove 
Ditton 

JABB002, 007, 
009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Blackthorn 
Drive 

Ditton 

JBCA006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Page 40



Bradbourne 
Lane 

Ditton 

JBCQ017 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cherry 
Orchard 

Ditton 

JCBI009 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Kiln Barn Road 
Ditton 

JKAL005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Linkway 
Ditton 

JLBI002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Medina Road 
Ditton 

JMBP003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Nursery Road 
Ditton 

JNBH008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Primrose Drive 
Ditton 

JPCM006, 007, 
009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Scott Close 
Ditton 

JSAU003, 005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

St Peters 
Road 

Ditton 

JSCS008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Woodlands 
Road 

Ditton 
JWCE011, 050, 
052, 053, 055 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Chapel Street 
East Malling 

JCAZ007 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cottenham 
Close 

East Malling 
JCDY005, 007, 

008 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Mill Street 
East Malling 

JMCL011 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

The Rocks 
Road 

East Malling 
JTBX012 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

The Rocks 
Road 

East Malling 
JTBY003 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Brainbridges 
Road 

East Peckham 
JWEA511 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Seven Mile 
Lane 

East Peckham 
JSAY506 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pattenden 
Gardens 

Golden Green 
JPDE001 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Page 41



Brookmead 
Hildenborough 

JBDO019, 020, 
021 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Church Road 
Hildenborough 

JCBY001, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Greenview 
Crescent 

Hildenborough 
JGBE002, 003, 

008, 009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Half Moon 
Lane 

Hildenborough 

JHAG501 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hawden Close 
Hildenborough 

JHBA003, 010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hilden Avenue 
Hildenborough 

JHCD002, 007 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hilden Park 
Road 

Hildenborough 

JHCE010, 012 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hill View Road 

Hildenborough JHCK001, 002, 
003, 004, 005, 
006, 007, 008, 

009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Mount 
Pleasant 

Hildenborough 
JMDF006, 501, 

502 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Oaklands Way 
Hildenborough 

JOAC001, 003, 
004 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Ightham 
Bypass 

Ightham 
JIAD001, 003, 

004 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Alfriston Grove 
Kings Hill 

JACC007 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Discovery 
Drive 

Kings Hill JDBP010, 014, 
016, 017, 020, 

037, 060 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Lambourne 
Drive 

Kings Hill 
JLEJ014 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pippin Way 
Kings Hill 

JPDO006, 008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Tower View 
Kings Hill 

JTFI072 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Barrie Drive 

Larkfield 

JBEJ002, 003 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 
 

Page 42



Betjeman 
Close 

Larkfield 

JBFB004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Blake Drive 
Larkfield 

JBEI002, 003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Brookfield 
Avenue 

Larkfield 

JBDL004, 005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Chaucer Way 
Larkfield JCBG017, 020, 

024, 025, 027, 
502, 503, 504 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cycle Path 
from Chaucer 
Way to New 
Hythe Lane 

Larkfield 

JUCG004 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cygnet Close 
Larkfield 

JCER004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Eagle Close 
Larkfield 

JEEA002, 007 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Gighill Road 
Larkfield JGAE501, 502, 

510, 513, 516, 
519 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Goldfinch 
Close 

Larkfield 

JGAI001, 002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Heron Road 
Larkfield 

JHBL007, 101 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Keats Road 
Larkfield 

JKAA014 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Larch Close 
Larkfield 

JLAJ001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Lunsford Lane 
Larkfield 

JLDD014, 507, 
508, 540, 541 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Martin Square 
Larkfield 

JMBD501 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Marsh Way 
Larkfield 

JMAY001, 002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Oriole Way 
Larkfield 

JOAW005, 006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pine Close 

Larkfield 

JPBI001 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 
 

Page 43



Plover Road 
Larkfield 

JPBW010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

River Way 
Larkfield 

JRAZ002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Swallow Road 
Larkfield 

JSDU002, 005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Thackeray 
Road 

Larkfield 
JTAS007, 008, 

009, 022 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Woodpecker 
Road 

Larkfield 

JWCI006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Baywell 
Leybourne 

JBFE022 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

London Road 
Leybourne 

JLCL011, 023 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Oxley Shaw 
Lane 

Leybourne 
JOBG040 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Sandown 
Road 

Leybourne 
JSAE005 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Maidstone 
Road 

Mereworth 
JTCU509 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Malling Road 
Mereworth 

JMAO021 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Brook Street 
Snodland 

JBDJ502 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Constitution 
Hill 

Snodland 

JCDN001, 502 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Paddlesworth 
Road 

Snodland 

JPAA301 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Rocfort Road 
Snodland 

JRBG507 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Saltings Road 
Snodland 

JSAD072 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

St Benedict 
Road 

Snodland 
JSER006, 026, 

035 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Willowside 
Snodland 

JWDP010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Page 44



Allington Drive 
Tonbridge 

JAAM001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Audley Avenue 
Tonbridge 

JABD001, 002, 
003, 004 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Baltic Road 
Tonbridge 

JBAE505, 506 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Barden Park 
Road 

Tonbridge JBAL002, 003, 
004, 005, 006, 

007, 008 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Barden Road 
Tonbridge JBAM001, 004, 

011, 012, 015, 
017, 020 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Caistor Road 
Tonbridge 

JCAB001, 002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cannon Lane 
Tonbridge 

JCAC011, 016, 
017, 018 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Castle Street 
Tonbridge 

JCAL001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Chaucer 
Gardens 

Tonbridge 

JCBF002, 008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cherry Grove 
Tonbridge 

JCBH003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Colin Blythe 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JCCX006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Constable 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JCDK001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Cromer Street 
Tonbridge 

JCEI001, 002, 
003 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Darenth 
Avenue 

Tonbridge 

JDAC010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Douglas Road 
Tonbridge 

JDAO013, 014, 
015, 019, 502 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Dry Hill Park 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JDAW507 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Gladstone 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JGAF002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hadlow Road 
East 

Tonbridge 

JHAC007 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Page 45



Hadlow Road 
Tonbridge 

JHAB008, 026 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Hunt Road 
Tonbridge 

JHDC011, 501 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Ives Road 
Tonbridge 

JIAF003, 502 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Judd Road 
Tonbridge 

JJAF501, 503 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Landseer 
Close 

Tonbridge 

JLAH003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Lawn Road 
Tonbridge 

JLAU001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Lodge Oak 
Lane 

Tonbridge 
JLBQ018 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

London Road 
Tonbridge 

JLBU001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Nelson 
Avenue  

Tonbridge JNAA001, 002, 
003, 004, 005, 
006, 007, 008, 

009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Norfolk Road 
Tonbridge 

JNAT003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Northcote 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JNBB001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Oakmead 
Tonbridge 

JOAD004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pembury Road 
Tonbridge 

JPAT003 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pembury Road 
Tonbridge 

JPAU012 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pembroke 
Road 

Tonbridge 

JPAQ001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Pen Way 
Tonbridge 

JPAV001, 005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Preston Road 

Tonbridge 

JPCJ001, 002, 
003 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 
 

Page 46



Quarry 
Gardens 

Tonbridge 
JQAA501, 503, 

504 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Raeburn Close 
Tonbridge 

JRAA001, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Rodney 
Avenue 

Tonbridge 

JRBV004, 006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Salisbury 
Close 

Tonbridge 

JSAA002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Scott Road 
Tonbridge 

JSAV002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Shipbourne 
Street 

Tonbridge JSBO018, 022, 
043, 044, 050, 

054 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

St Marys Road 
Tonbridge 

JSCO509, 510 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Strawberry 
Vale 

Tonbridge 
JSDO001, 002, 

003 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

The Slade 
Tonbridge 

JTBZ502 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Tudeley Lane 
Tonbridge 

JTDV004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Tulip Tree 
Close 

Tonbridge 

JTDX006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Vale Road 
Tonbridge JVAC013, 017, 

020, 024, 054, 
057 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Waterloo Road 
Tonbridge 

JWAQ009, 013, 
014, 015 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Weald View 
Road 

Tonbridge 
JWAS503 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Wincliff Road 
Tonbridge 

JWBR006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Woodgate 
Way 

Tonbridge 
JWDQ021, 026 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Bluebell Hill 
Village Slip 

Walderslade 
JUBK501 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Catkin Close 
Walderslade 

JCFT001, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Page 47



Chippendale 
Close 

Walderslade 

JCFO002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Common Road 
Walderslade 

JCEW506 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Falkland Place 
Walderslade 

JFCC004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Fostington 
Way 

Walderslade 
JFBI005, 007, 
010, 011, 502 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Frensham 
Walk 

Walderslade 

JFBR001, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Hallsfield Road 
Walderslade 

JHAK008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Hawthorns 
Walderslade 

JHBD001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Hepplewhite 
Mews 

Walderslade 

JHDN002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Hurst Hill 
Walderslade 

JHDR011, 016 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Locksley Close 
Walderslade 

JLDL004, 007, 
009 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Maidstone 
Road 

Walderslade 

JMDJ512 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Marlow Copse 
Walderslade 

JMAX010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Oakleigh 
Close 

Walderslade 

JOBH008 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Oaks Dene 
Walderslade 

JOBB002, 006 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Robin Hood 
Lane 

Walderslade 
JRBB002, 004, 

006 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Robin Hood 
Lane 

Walderslade 

JRBE004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Robin Hood 
Lane 

Walderslade 

JUBC040 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Sadlers Close 
Walderslade 

JSEQ003, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Page 48



Sheraton 
Court 

Walderslade 

JSEO001 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Taddington 
Wood Lane 

Walderslade 

JTAA010 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Tunbury 
Avenue 

Walderslade 
JTEB006, 008, 

016 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Tunbury 
Avenue 

Walderslade 

JTEQ002, 004 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Valley Rise 
Walderslade 

JVAE002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Walderslade 
Woods 

Walderslade 
KWAB010, 029, 

041, 506 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Walsham 
Road 

Walderslade 

JWDB002 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Woodbury 
Road 

Walderslade 
JWDC001, 010, 

021 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015. 

Redhouse 
Gardens 

Wateringbury 
JRAJ005 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Goodworth 
Road 

Wrotham Heath 
JGAM001 

Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

London Road 
Wrotham Heath 

JLBW005 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

Nepicar Lane 
Wrotham Heath 

JUAQ513 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

West Street 
Wrotham Heath 

JWAZ010, 501 
Various 
Locations 

Currently being programmed 
for completion January / 
February 2015 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 49



Appendix C – Structures 
 

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Tony Ambrose 

 

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status 

High Street Tonbridge 

Repainting Tonbridge Little 
Bridge. Private walkway railings 
and supports to be painted on 
behalf of Tonbridge and Malling 

Borough Council 

Complete 

 
 

 

1.1 Legal Implications 

1.1.1 Not applicable. 

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.2.1 Not applicable. 

1.3 Risk Assessment 

1.3.1 Not applicable. 

Contact: Carol Valentine/ Mark Simmons 03000 41 81 81  

Page 50



   

JTB - Part 1 Public  17th March 2014 

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

1st December 2014 

Report of the Head of Transportation  

Part 1- Public 

Matters for Information 

 

1 A20 LONDON ROAD, WROTHAM HILL, WROTHAM 

1.1 Background 

1.1.1 This report seeks to inform members of action undertaken in response to a recent 

fatal motorcycle crash on the A20 London Road Wrotham Hill.  This matter was 

raised at the last meeting of this board. 

1.2 Progress to Date 

1.2.1 Officers from KCC Highways and Transportation met with the Vice-chairman of 

Wrotham Parish Council, Mr Harry Rayner, on 5th November 2014.  An officer 

from KCC Road Safety provided specific motorcyclist insight. 

1.2.2 The current crash history for the site is currently good.  The site is not currently 

being investigated as a crash cluster site.  Initial investigations from Kent Police 

following the recent tragic incident did not recommend any changes to the 

highway. 

1.2.3 The recent crash and tragic fatality will be subject to a Coroner’s Inquest in due 

course and Kent County Council will of course take consideration of any 

recommendations made at that time. 

1.3 Work to be undertaken 

1.3.1 Notwithstanding the findings of any future inquest, Kent County Council does feel 

there is merit in improving some highly visible chevron signage at the site.  The 

site is close to a number of motorcycling trip generators and as such a minor, cost 

effective measure such as this may be prudent. 

1.4 Legal Implications 

1.4.1 None at this stage 

 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



 2  

JTB - Part 1 Public  17th March 2014  

1.5 Financial Considerations 

1.5.1 The site currently has a good safety record; however it is clear that due to the high 

numbers of motorcyclists present at times, a relatively low cost measure such as 

this represents good value. 

1.6 Risk Assessment 

1.6.1 Not required 

 

 

Background papers: contact: Michael Heath 

 
None 

 

 

Tim Read 

Head of Transportation 

 

 

 

Page 52



Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder 
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would 
disclose exempt information. 

 

 

ANY REPORTS APPEARING AFTER THIS PAGE CONTAIN EXEMPT 

INFORMATION 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special 
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Apologies for absence
	2 Declarations of interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Parking Action Plan
	5 Local Growth Fund Projects
	6 Developer Funded Schemes, Section 106 and Local Transport Plan Schemes
	Annex 1

	7 Combined Members Highway Fund and Members Grant Report for Tonbridge and Malling
	8 Highway Works Programme 2014/15
	9 A20 London Road, Wrotham Hill, Wrotham
	10 Urgent Items
	11 Exclusion of Press and Public
	12 Urgent Items

